
* Denotes items that have supporting documentation

AGENDA OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

CITY OF BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

December 28th, 2023 
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER  

PUBLIC FORUM 

APPROVE AGENDA 

REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Approve November 30 2023 PC Meeting Minutes* (pp. 2-3)

B. 23-05-VB (23 Birchwood Lane) Variance
1. Public Forum
2. Review Variance Application* (pp. 4-17)
3. Review City Planner Memo* (pp. 18-22)
4. Commission Finding of Fact* (pp. 23-26)
5. Commission Recommendation

ADJOURN 

1



                     MEETING MINUTES (Draft)  

 (Joint Birchwood Council Special Meeting and Planning Commission Regular Meeting) 

                                               City Hall - 7:19 PM Regular Meeting 10/26/2023 

     Submitted by Michael Kraemer – secretary 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: –– Andy Sorenson - Chairman, Michelle Maiers-Atakpu, 
Michael Kraemer, Michael McKenzie, Joe Evans 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: none 

OTHERS PRESENT: Birchwood Council, Ben Wickstrom – City Planner, Marcus Johnson – 
BMI – City Engineer, Jack Kramer – City Building Official, Rebecca Kellen – City 
Administrator,  

  TO ORDER: Meeting called to order by Chairman Andy Sorenson at 7:19 PM. Council 
meeting was already in session from 6:45 closed meeting.  

1. PUBLIC FORUM  
a. No one present 

2. APPROVE AGENDA 
a. Motion by Maiers-Atakpu, 2nd by Sorenson to approve agenda. Vote: Yes – 5, No 

– 0. Motion to approve agenda passed.  
3. REGULAR AGENDA 

a. Item A – Review/Approve Oct 26, 2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
i. Motion by Evans, 2nd by Maiers-Atakpu, to approve the minutes. Vote: 

Yes – 5, No – 0, Motion to approve the minutes passed. 
b. Item B – Planning Commission Term Expiration 

i. Terms expiring as of December 2023 include: 
1. Michelle Maiers-Atakpu 
2. Michael Kraemer 
3. Mike McKenzie – replacement for Ryan Hankins term 
4. Joe Evans submitted letter of resignation as of December 31,2023. 

ii. Appointments to Planning Commission will be open city wide. Persons 
interested in being appointed should submit a letter of interest to City 
Administrator.   

4. Joint Council/Planning Commission Workshop Agenda 
a. The joint workshop reviewed the job description, role, duties, authority, and 

responsibility of City staff (including the City Planner, City Clerk, City Engineer, 
City Building Official) and the role of the Planning Commission and City Council 
as it relates to the following: 

i. Administration and review of permit applications for completeness, 
time lines and related issues.  

2



1. OUTCOME. It is anticipated that newly developed automated 
software (draft rollout 9/2023], and appointment of designated 
city administrator, city engineer, city planner and city building 
official will accomplish needed follow through and closeout.  

ii. Administration of construction and permit follow up, enforcement, 
closeout and related issues.   

1. OUTCOME. It is anticipated that newly developed automated 
software (draft rollout 9/2023], and appointment of designated 
city administrator, city engineer, city planner and city building 
official will accomplish needed follow through, enforcement and 
closeout. 

iii. Administration of our variance and CUP application processes.   
1. OUTCOME. It is anticipated that newly developed automated 

software (draft rollout 9/2023], and appointment of designated 
city administrator, city engineer, city planner and city building 
official will accomplish needed follow through and closeout. 

iv. Periodic City Code review processes and related issues? (I.e., Do we have 
a policy for periodic code review and upgrades? Who can propose 
suggested edits, additions, deletions? What is the venue and protocol 
for such suggestions?) 

1. OUTCOME. It is anticipated that appointment of designated city 
administrator, city engineer, city planner and city building official 
will accomplish needed review, follow through, and 
documentation. 

v. City policy and enforcement protocol (timeliness, completeness) related 
to meeting packets, agendas, public notifications, supporting document 
submittals, etc.  

1. OUTCOME. Appointment of designated city administrator, city 
engineer, city planner and city building official has already 
demonstrated process improvements, follow through, and 
documentation.  

5. ADJOURN 8:28 PM 
a. Motion by McKenzie, 2nd by Evans to adjourn meeting. Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0. 

Motion passed.   

 

  

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



Variance Application – 23 Birchwood Lane 
1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date(s):  December 28, 2023 Planning Commission 
    January 12, 2024 City Council 
 
Scope: Front and Side Yard Setback Variances 
Applicant:    Liengswangwong property 

                                    
Representative:  Joe Becker, Rosebud Construction 
Property Location:  23 Birchwood Lane 
    
 
        Report prepared by Ben Wikstrom, Planning Consultant 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Application 
2. Survey/site plan 
3. Deck Plans 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Liengswangwong family and their builder are applying for a variance from the side and 
ordinary high water line setbacks to allow construction of a deck, landing, and stairway on the 
lake side of their home at 23 Birchwood Lane.  The property can be seen in the aerial below, 
taken from the Washington County GIS website: 
 

 
 
SURROUNDING USES 
North: White Bear Lake 
East:  Single-family home 
South: Birchwood Lane and single-family homes 
West: Single-family home 

18



Variance Application – 23 Birchwood Lane 
2 

 
PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION 
The proposed deck has a main area of 24’ in width by 14’ in depth, with a landing of 8’ in width 
and varying depth, a portion of which leads to a stairway that lands in the yard no closer to the 
lake than the deck. See the survey and the drawing and rendering below. 
 
NOTE:  The darkened/hatched area showing the proposed deck is drawn too large, according to 
the scale and described dimensions.  More detail can be found in the discussion section. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

19



Variance Application – 23 Birchwood Lane 
3 

APPLICANT COMMENT 
From the application: 
 
“The current setbacks limit the size of a deck to only 5’ on the west side of the house and only 3’ 
on the north side of the house.  ‘Practical difficulties’ would consist of not being able to use the 
deck for normal deck use functions…” 
 
This is not how practical difficulties are measured – as you will find below – but the applicant’s 
contention that a 3-foot wide deck is unreasonable is valid. 
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
For an explanation of a variance analysis, here is an excerpt from the ordinance: 
 
SUBD. 1. 
A. Variances shall only be permitted 
i. when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance and 
ii. when the variances are consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
B. Variances may be granted when the applicant for the variance establishes that there are 
practical difficulties in complying with the zoning ordinance. 
SUBD. 2. "Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means 
that: 
i. Special conditions or circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or building 
involved. 
ii. The condition which result in the need for the variance were not created by the applicant's 
action or design solution. The applicant shall have the burden of proof for showing that no other 
reasonable design solution exists. 
iii. The granting of a variance will result in no increase in the amount of water draining from the 
property. 
iv. Granting the variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, 
or unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding area, or 
in any other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the City. 
v. No variance shall be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who 
do not object outnumber those who do. 
vi. Financial gain or loss by the applicant shall not be considered if reasonable use for the 
property exists under terms of the Zoning Code. 
 
 
STAFF COMMENT 
Variances like those proposed are subjective based on the leanings of the Planning 
Commission and City Council.  There are arguments to be made for both approval and denial.  
For instance, the findings for approval of the variances would read like the following: 
 

1. The construction date of the house listed on the County website is 1902; the age of the 
house predates current ordinances and setbacks and the structure was not built by the 
applicant. 

2. A lakeside deck is a reasonable request that requires a variance to allow a size that 
becomes usable space. 

3. The character of the neighborhood would not be altered with approval of the variance. 
4. Neighborhood property values will not be diminished with approval of the variance and 

construction of the deck. 

20



Variance Application – 23 Birchwood Lane 
4 

5. The proposed structure will be built with decking spaced sufficiently so as not to increase 
impervious surface on the property. 

 
Findings for denial would read as follows: 
 

1. A 14’ by 24’ deck is not reasonably sized for a deck that requires a variance. 
2. A deck in a different configuration could be constructed to lessen the variance and still 

be considered usable space. 
3. The sightlines from the house to the west would be impacted with approval of the 

variance and construction of the deck.   
4. The homes along Birchwood Lane in the vicinity of the subject property meet the 

setbacks from the OHWL of White Bear Lake, as seen in the aerial below. 
 

  
 
 
DISCUSSION 
There are a number of items to consider during the discussion portion of the hearing or meeting.   
 

1. Does the Planning Commission believe that homes are entitled to a deck, and that the 
proposed size is reasonable?  The survey showing the proposed deck appears to not be 
drawn to scale, and the deck would be smaller than the area drawn (it appears the 
darkened, main part of the deck is drawn at approximately 26’ X 22’, whereas the 
drawings of the deck show 24’ X 14’).  However, the deck extends 14’ from the home, 
which encroaches the setback by as much as 11’, according to the application narrative.  
Is there a configuration that would allow a walkway form the sliding door around the 
northwest corner of the home to a deck that extends 10’ or 12’ toward the lake, and is 
centered on or on the east side of the house to a width less than 24’?  Often a variance 
is requested to a desired or maximum size, with the ultimate, approved product reduced 
to a size that is acceptable to the commission or council. 

2. Is the stairway considered a reasonable encroachment of the west lot line setback, 
considering the placement between the homes at the landing and highest portion of the 

21



Variance Application – 23 Birchwood Lane 
5 

stairway (meaning, the stairway itself doesn’t impact the sightline from the west as the 
stairs extend toward the lake)? 

3. Considering that the properties along Birchwood Lane in the vicinity of the subject 
property generally meet the setback from the lake, is it a troublesome precedent to set in 
allowing a variance, or one to this extent? 

 
The house on the subject property sits roughly 4’ above the house to the west, and 4’ below the 
house to the east, so lines of sight are impacted in terms of elevations.  The house to the east, 
as can be seen in the aerial above and attached survey, is angled away from this property so 
the views may not be greatly affected from living area windows on that lot.  The house to the 
west has approximately the same building line angle and the same setback as the subject lot, 
so the deck is somewhat in the line of sight from the property to west when looking northeast.  
 
NOTE: If a variance is or variances are approved by the City Council to allow construction of the 
deck, the resolution should include language to approve a variance that allows improvement to 
and expansion of a legally non-conforming structure.  The lot area is substandard in size and 
width based on today’s ordinances for riparian lots.  The ordinance requires riparian lots to be 
15,000 square feet in minimum area and 80’ wide, while this lot is roughly 11,800 square feet in 
area and 50’ wide.  Additionally, the setback on the east side of the house, which is required by 
ordinance to be 10’, is substandard (the survey is unreadable, but the setback scales to roughly 
7’).  

22



BIRCHWOOD VILLAGE 
Variance Findings Form 

EACH OF THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA MUST BE SATISFIED TO APPROVE

#1: Is the request in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the ordinance? 

The specific Ordinance states ________________________________________________________________  
(state ordinance requirement), the purpose of which is to ___________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________ (explain what the ordinance requirement is intended to prevent or protect).  

The  proposed  variance  is  for:  __________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________ (explain proposal and potential effects). 

This variance  is/is not  in harmony with  the purpose and  intent of  the specific Ordinance because: ________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________ (explain how the proposal is in harmony with or undermines the purpose of the ordinance). 

#2:  Would granting the variance be consistent with the comprehensive plan? 

The Comprehensive Plan contains the following policies and goals regarding this request: ________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________ (list applicable policies, goals, and maps, including citations). 

Granting the variance is/is not consistent with the comprehensive plan because: ________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________ (explain how;  relate details of the request to specific policies, goals, and maps). 

#3: Are there special conditions or circumstances that are peculiar to the land, structure, or building 
involved?  

There are/are no circumstances unique to the property that would prevent compliance with the specific 
Ordinance because:__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(describe any physical characteristics of the land that are unique to this property that prevent compliance with 

the ordinance requirement, and whether the applicant has demonstrated that no other reasonable alternative 
exists that would comply with the ordinance; explain what makes this property different from other properties to 

justify why this applicant should be able to deviate from the ordinance when others must comply).

1 23



#4: Were the special conditions or circumstances created by the applicant's action or design 
solution?

The conditions that resulted in the need for the variance were/were not created by the applicant because:  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________ (if there are special conditions or 
circumstances, describe whether they were created by some action of the applicant/property owner). 

#5: Will granting a variance result in any increase in the amount of water draining from the 
property? 

Granting the variance will/will not increase the amount of water that drains from the property because:  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________ (if granting the variance will 
increase the amount of water that drains from the property, explain how and how much it will increase). 

#6: Will granting the variance impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, or 
unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the surrounding area, or in any 
other respect impair the public health, safety, or welfare of the residents of the City? 

Granting the variance will/will not impair light and air to adjacent property, or diminish or impair property 
values in the area, or impair the public health, safety, or welfare of Birchwood residents  because:   
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________  (if granting the variance could 
be detrimental to neighbors or other Birchwood residents, explain how).

2 24



#7: A variance must not be granted simply because there are no objections or because those who do 
not object outnumber those who do?  

Has this variance been granted only because of the number of objections to the request:   □ Yes   □ No     

Explain:___________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ (If you believe 
that the decision has been determined simply because of the number of supporters or objections, explain how).

#8: Does reasonable use for the property exist under terms of the Zoning Code?

Reasonable use for the property does/does not exist under terms of the Zoning Code because:____________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ (Describe how 
the Zoning Code does or does not allow for reasonable use of the property.  If reasonable use of the property 
does exist under terms of the Zoning Code, the applicant's financial gain or loss shall not be considered in your 
decision).

What is your decision? (Approve or Deny) 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________. 
Remember - ALL criteria MUST be satisfied to approve. 

If approved, what conditions will you impose?  (Findings must support the conditions; explain the impacts of 
the proposed development and the conditions that address those impacts. Remember that findings must be 
directly related and proportional to the impacts created by the variance. Set specific timeframes and deadlines, 
and consider requiring the following to help ensure compliance with the conditions:  

3

• financial sureties to ensure that the required activities are completed within specified deadlines,

• as‐built drawings and/or photos as proof of completion within the terms of the conditions, and/or

• long‐term maintenance and operation agreements for stormwater best management practices and 
vegetation that must be protected or restored as a condition of approval, along with notices of 
restrictions recorded against properties to ensure that future property owners are aware of their 
responsibilities and don’t unknowingly “undo” any conditions.)

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

25



conditions continued  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________. 

4 26


	Dec 28 2023 PC Meeting Agenda FINAL.pdf
	Dec 28 PC meeting agenda packet.pdf
	Dec 28 2023 PC Meeting Agenda DRAFT.pdf
	11.30.2023 Birchwood PC Regular Meeting Minutes (Draft).pdf
	variance - 23 Birchwood Lane (1).pdf
	PC Staff Report - 23 Birchwood Lane Variance.pdf
	STAFF REPORT

	Variance Findings Form.pdf
	Blank Page





